

cc: On-Demand Install and User Guide, Version 4.5 R2

March 2012

Reference Guide

www.callcopy.com

Security Classification: CallCopy Confidential

Distribution: Approved internal CallCopy staff only and licensed CallCopy customers

Note: Applicable non-disclosure agreements must be in force for authorization.

Revision History						
Revision	Change Description	Author	Effective Date			
0	Updated page formatting and content for version 4.5.	JThomas	8 August 2011			
1	Added note to On-Demand Settings section explaining that clients have to be restarted for the changes to User field settings to take effect.	JThomas	4 October 2011			
2	Add sections on Schedules, Permissions, and troubleshooting.	JThomas	27 March 2012			

© Copyright 2011-2012, CallCopy, Inc. All rights reserved.

No part of this document may be transmitted or distributed, or copied, photocopied, scanned, reproduced, translated, microfilmed, or otherwise duplicated on any medium without written consent of CallCopy. If written consent is given, the same confidential, proprietary, and copyright notices must be affixed to any permitted copies as were affixed to the original. The information contained in this document does not constitute legal advice, and should not be considered a replacement for sound legal counsel. CallCopy shall be in no way liable for any use or misuse of the information presented herein.

Table of Contents

Introduction
cc: On-Demand Server6
Service Installation6
Register Service6
INI configuration6
Web Portal Configuration
Service Loader7
On-Demand Settings7
User Settings and Permissions8
Schedule
cc: On-Demand Client
Preparing for Installation9
Requirements9
9 Hardware Requirements
Minimum Specifications:9
Recommended Specifications:9
Software Requirements9
Prerequisites9
Client Installation9
Locating Client Installer9
Installing the Client
Uninstalling14
Silent Options
Client Configuration
Using the Client
Recording Calls
Update Call Records
Checking the Status
Changing Settings

Device Settings	
Servers Settings	21
System Settings	21
Closing the Application	22
Troubleshooting	23
Obtaining Client Logs	23
Core Settings	23
Scripts	23
About CallCopy	24

Introduction

cc: On-Demand is a client/server application that allows users to control the recording of their calls from a desktop application. It also allows manual input of data into the call record stored in the database so additional information regarding the recording can be added by the user.

Before using this guide, you should have

- Completed the tasks in the cc: Discover Installation Guide.
- Created Agent accounts and configured the accounts' On-Demand settings in cc: Discover. The accounts' System Usernames and System Domain settings must match those used by agents to login to Windows. See the *cc: Discover Administration Manual* for information on agent accounts.

cc: On-Demand Server

Service Installation

The cc: On-Demand service manages connections for workstations running the cc: On-Demand Client software, and processes requests made by the clients for the purpose of controlling call recording. The service is included with the base cc: Discover install package. This package must be installed on any server that will act as a cc: On-Demand server. For more information on the cc: Discover installation, see the *cc: Discover Installation Guide*.

Register Service

Once the cc: Discover software is installed on the system; open a Command Prompt window on the server that will run the service. Change to the CallCopy Recorder directory. From the directory, run the following command:

cc_OnDemandServer.exe -svcinstall -autostart

If successful, the Command Prompt will print the message "Service Installed." You will be returned to the working directory prompt.

INI configuration

The service has an INI file that **must** be configured for the proper operation of the module. The INI file used by the service is located in the base folder the cc: Discover software was installed to, at **Recorder\cc_OnDemandServer.ini**

This is an example output of a configuration file, with important settings detailed in the table to the right:

[server]	Server Settings Section
port=2007	TCP Port Server listens for connections from clients on.
refresh=5000	This setting is deprecated.
[api]	Module Configuration Section
useapi=true	Always set to true.
host=127.0.0.1	IP address for the API Server the cc: On-Demand service will be connecting to.
port=5620	The TCP Port the API server is listening for connections on. Default is 5620.
reconnect=3000	The time in milliseconds between connection attempts to the API server
[logging]	Logging Settings
Failsilently=False	Prevents the logging from throwing an exception when it is not running. If the logger is missing, it will fail silently, and the server will continue running. Set to 'True' if no notification is needed when the logger fails.

Web Portal Configuration

Perform these tasks in the cc: Discover Web Portal.

Service Loader

To add the service to the Loader configuration, follow the listed steps.

- 1. Click on the Administration tab
- 2. From the navigation menu on the left, select the **Tools** section.
- 3. Click the **Service Loader** link from the menu.
- 4. On the Loader Applications page click the Add button at the top right.
- 5. A new line will be displayed on the page. Enter the following information:
 - Site Name: Select the Server Node that the service will run from
 - App Name: Enter cc_OnDemandServer.exe
 - **Restart:** Check the box to have the service restarted automatically if it is stopped.
- 6. Click the Save icon (\Box) to save the listing.

On-Demand Settings

The On-Demand Client enables users to update some call record data. The data that can be updated is specified by administrators using the Web Portal's On-Demand Settings page. By default, users can update all fields. To change users' permissions

- 1. Click on the Administration tab
- 2. From the navigation menu on the left, select the **Settings** section.
- 3. Click the **On-Demand** link from the menu.
- 4. To prevent users from updating a field, select **No** from the drop-down menu. Select **Yes** if they should be able to update a field.
- 5. Click Save to record the changes.

Changes do not take effect until the On-Demand client is restarted.

The data field labels can be changed on the Terminology page. In this example, the first field label has been changed from User1 to Account. The fourth field label has been changed from User4 to Case Number. See the *cc: Discover Administration Manual* for additional information on using the Terminology page.

Hom	ne Web	Player	Coac	hing	Reporting	Surveys	Administration	Logged in as superuser Change Recoverd agent
Core	Core Functions Add-Ons							
Permis	sions			On	Demand			Save
Setting	s				Allow Account I	Update : Yes		•
API Se	rvers List		-		Allow User2 (Update : Yes		
Archiv	er ol Man				Allow User3 (Update : Yes		•
CTI Co	onfiguration	1		Allo	w Case Number I	Update : Yes		
CTIM	onitors				Allow User5 (Update : Yes		
Custo	m Extensio m Lookup	ns			Allow User6 (Update : Yes		
Data S Device	erver Alias Map				Allow User7 (Update : Yes		
Disk S Export	pace Notific er Settings	ations			Allow User8 (Update : Yes		<u> </u>
IP Pho Notific	nes ations				Allow User10	Update : Yes		
On Der Record	mand ding Filters				Allow User11 I	Update : Yes		
Record	ding Filters Nodes	Import			Allow User12	Update : Yes		
SSL Se Station	ettings 1s				Allow User13 (Update : Yes		
Station Termi	ns Import nology				Allow User14	Update : Yes		•
Irans	coder				Allow User151	Indate Ves		

User Settings and Permissions

In order to be recorded with On-Demand, users' Discover accounts must have these settings configured:

- System Username The System Username would be the Network ID the Agent uses to login to the Windows Network. Not the fully qualified user name.
- System Domain -- The Windows domain that the Agent logs in to. Only specify a domain if the Agent has Windows network IDs on more than one Windows domain, and you wish to only record the desktop activity on that specific domain. This field may be left blank.

Users also must be assigned roles that have On-Demand permissions. See the *cc: Discover Administration Manual* for more information.

Schedule

See the cc: Discover Administration Manual for more information.

An On-Demand schedule (i.e., Schedule Type is 'On-Demand') must be created. On-Demand schedules provide several options:

- The schedule usually should never expire.
- Set Target Percentage to 100%.
- Entering no schedule requirements can possibly make the schedule available for all users, depending on permissions, installation of the software client, and call direction.
- Schedule requirements can be used to limit the schedule to specific users, extensions/devices, ACD groups, or ADC gates.

cc: On-Demand Client

Preparing for Installation

Requirements

Hardware Requirements

Minimum Specifications:

- Pentium 1.5 GHz
- 1 GB RAM
- 50 MB hard drive space
- 1280 X 800 minimum screen resolution

Recommended Specifications:

- Pentium 3Ghz or 1.6Ghz dual core
- 2 GB RAM
- 50 MB hard drive space
- 1280 X 1024 or higher screen resolution

Software Requirements

• Operating Systems: Windows XP, Windows Vista, Windows 7

Prerequisites

The following software packages are required for the operation of the client software and will be installed on the workstation prior to installation of the software.

• .NET Framework v3.5 SP1 or greater

Client Installation

Locating Client Installer

The client installer can be obtained from any cc: Discover server by browsing to the C:\Program Files\CallCopy\Installers\ folder.

The application installer is named "CallCopy On-Demand Client Setup.msi"

Installing the Client

To begin the installation process, double click the installation MSI file. The Setup Wizard will open to the following screen.



Click Next to continue.

🙀 CallCopy On-Demand Client Software Setup	
End-User License Agreement	((
Please read the following license agreement carefully	
Copyright (C) 2003-2010 CallCopy Incorporated	
** This notice may not be removed or altered from	
this distribution. **	
Thank you for choosing CallCopy.	T
I accept the terms in the License Agreement	
Print Back Next C	ancel

Check the box accepting the License Agreement and click Next.

🙀 CallCopy On-Demand Client Software Setup	
Custom Setup Select the way you want features to be installed.	
Click the icons in the tree below to change the way I	features will be installed.
CallCopy On-Demand Client Soft	The complete CallCopy On-Demand Client software package.
×	This feature requires OKB on your hard drive. It has 1 of 1 subfeatures selected. The subfeatures require 481KB on your hard drive.
Location: C:\Program Files\CallCopy\OnDer	nand\ <u>Br</u> owse
Reset Disk Usage	Back Next Cancel

CallCopy ScreenCapture Client Softw Change destination folder Browse to the destination folder	are Setup		CallCopy ScreenCapture	e Client Software Setup ents or the installation of the selected	d features.	
Look in: Program Files	Look in: Program Files					
7-Zip	Bonjour		Volume	Disk Size	Available	Required
Adobe			C:	450GB	312GB	7753KB
	Common Files		œG:	1808GB	102GB	OKB
ATI Technologies	DAEMON Tools Lite			1808GB	102GB	ОКВ
< III		•	₽s:	1808GB	102GB	ОКВ
Folder name:						
C:\Program Files\CallCopy\			•	III		4
	OK	Cancel				ОК

On the Custom Setup page, you can set the directory the client software will be installed to by clicking the **Browse...** button and selecting a folder.

To verify the workstation has enough disk space to install the software, click the **Disk Usage** button.

When you have selected the desired options, click **Next** on the Custom Setup screen to continue.

🔂 CallCopy On-Demand Client Software Se	tup 📃 🗙
Server Setup	(())
Please specify server database information	
Host IP Address: 127.0.0.1	
	Back Next Cancel

The Server Setup page opens. In the **Host IP Address:** field, enter the IP Address of the server running the cc: On-Demand Server module the client will connect to.

Once you have configured the settings, click Next.

🚰 CallCopy On-Demand Client Software Setup	_ 🗆 🗙
Ready to install CallCopy On-Demand Client Software	
Click Install to begin the installation. Click Back to review or change any of your installation settings. Click Cancel to exit the wizard.	
<u>B</u> ack Install	Tancel

The wizard now has the configuration information necessary for installation. Click the **Install** button to perform the software install.

🛱 CallCopy On-Demand Client Software Setup					
(0)	Completed the CallCopy On-Demand Client Software Setup Wizard				
	Click the Finish button to exit the Setup Wizard.				
	Back Einish Cancel				

If the software install is successful, the Completed window will be displayed. Click **Finish** to close the Setup Wizard.

The cc: On-Demand Client is now installed. The software will run automatically during the next Windows startup.

cc: On-Demand Client

Uninstalling

If it is ever necessary, follow these steps to uninstall the software. Open the Add/Remove Programs applet in the Control Panel.

🐻 Add or Rer	nove Programs		
5	Currently installed programs:	es <u>S</u> ort by: Name	•
C <u>h</u> ange or Remove	😂 CallCopy On-Demand Client Software	Size	<u>0.45MB</u>
Programs	Click here for support information.	Used	<u>rarely</u>
5	To change this program or remove it from your computer, click Change or Remove	e. Change	Remove
Add <u>N</u> ew Programs	CallCopy Recording Software	Size	182.00MB
	🔂 Microsoft .NET Framework 2.0 Service Pack 2	Size	186.00MB
	🔀 Microsoft .NET Framework 3.0 Service Pack 2	Size	222.00MB
Add/Remove Windows	🔀 Microsoft .NET Framework 3.5 SP1	Size	28.05MB
Components	😡 Microsoft .NET Framework 4 Client Profile	Size	120.00MB
	🌄 Microsoft .NET Framework 4 Extended	Size	38.04MB
	B Microsoft Office 2003 Web Components	Size	31.70MB
	🔀 Microsoft Report Viewer Redistributable 2008 (KB971119)	Size	123.00MB
	🥪 Microsoft Silverlight	Size	19.41MB
	Microsoft SQL Server 2008	Size	784.00MB
	📑 Microsoft SQL Server 2008 Browser	Size	7.95MB
	📋 Microsoft SQL Server 2008 Native Client	Size	4.49MB
	Aicrosoft SQL Server 2008 Policies	Size	0.86MB
	🚦 Microsoft SQL Server 2008 Setup Support Files (English)	Size	33.03MB
	R Microsoft SOL Server Compact 3.5 SP1 Epolish	Size	2 60MB

The software will be labeled "CallCopy On-Demand Client Software". Highlight the item from the list and click **Remove**.

Add or Remove Programs 🛛 🛛 🕅				
?	Are you sure you want to remove CallCopy On-Demand Client Software from your computer?			
	<u>Y</u> es <u>N</u> o			

You will be prompted to remove the software. Click **Yes** on this window. The software will be automatically uninstalled, and the entry on the Programs list will be removed once the process is complete.

Silent Options

The client installer also has options to install silently, with no user intervention required or allowed. The installer uses standard available Windows Installer options available by running the "**msiexec.exe**" application.

```
Install Options
      </package | /i> <Product.msi>
             Installs or configures a product
      /a <Product.msi>
             Administrative install - Installs a product on the network
      /j<u|m> <Product.msi> [/t <Transform List>] [/g <Language ID>]
             Advertises a product - m to all users, u to current user
      </uninstall | /x> <Product.msi | ProductCode>
             Uninstalls the product
Display Options
      /quiet
             Quiet mode, no user interaction
      /passive
             Unattended mode - progress bar only
      /q[n|b|r|f]
             Sets user interface level
             n - No UI
             b - Basic UI
             r - Reduced UI
             f - Full UI (default)
      /help
             Help information
Restart Options
      /norestart
             Do not restart after the installation is complete
      /promptrestart
            Prompts the user for restart if necessary
      /forcerestart
             Always restart the computer after installation
```

Using these parameters, you can install the software automatically and require the computer to be restarted after. An example command for that configuration would be:

Msiexec.exe /i "C:\ CallCopy On-Demand Client Setup.msi" /passive /forcerestart

This command must be run from the command prompt to process properly. If the silent install is used with default settings, the configuration settings will not be set to connect to any server. The configuration files will need to be modified afterwards, or the MSI package will need to be extracted, and the configuration file replaced.

Client Configuration

The client settings are stored and read from a configuration file that is stored in the client installation directory. The file is named **cc_OnDemandClient.ini**. This file contains the settings configured during installation.

This is an example output of a configuration file, with important settings detailed in the table to the right:

[server]	Server settings section
host=127.0.0.1	IP address of the cc: On-Demand Server
port=2007	TCP Port used to connect to the cc: On-Demand Server. Default port is 2007.
[logging]	Logging settings section
Level=DEBUG	Log level. Set to DEBUG to provide the most information, but can result in larger log files. Setting to ERROR will only log out error messages.

Using the Client

When the On-Demand Client application launches, it tries to connect to the server that was configured during installation. A balloon tip will pop-up informing you of the current status of the connection.



If the connection fails at start-up, or if there is a disruption in the server that causes a disconnection, the application will continue to try to reconnect every 30 seconds. After ten failed reconnect attempts, the Client will enter a standby mode, and the user will need to select "**Reconnect...**" from the menu to try again.

When connected, the Client application will send your local machine's currently logged in username and domain (if any), as well as the machine's name.

You and your machine must be properly configured by the administrator before you can use the Client application. If the application can't find the user by the username, it will display a "Login Failed" message.

You can check and see if you are logged in as yourself by going to the Status menu or by watching the name that appears when you login. Using the incorrect account can cause recordings to be mislabeled or not recorded at all!

Recording Calls



Call recording can be started by right-clicking the On-Demand Client icon in the system tray and choosing one of the options in the "Start Audio Recording" menu.

There are two available options, depending on the permissions set by the administrator:

- "By Device ID" which is also called "By Extension" or "By Voice Port" -- This method records a call using the actual physical device's identifier and is available if the administrator has not selected to run in secure mode. Any calls made on that physical device will be recorded.
- "By Device Alias" which is also called "By Agent Number" This method uses an agent identifier, rather than a device identifier, to determine what call is to be recorded. Typically, it requires the user to login to the phone, and the login ID identifies the agent. This allows users to sit at different stations, while having the same identifier.

In most installations, "By Device ID (Extension)" will be sufficient. Please see your administrator if you have any questions.

Once recording has started, it will continue until the call is completed or is explicitly stopped by you by selecting **"Stop Audio Recording"**.

Update Call Records

It is sometimes necessary to record information associated with a call, such as the CRM number or the account number of the caller. The administrator will have set up call record fields, and they can be accessed by right-clicking on the On-Demand Client icon in the system tray and choosing **"Update Call Record"**.

Update Call Record					
You may update information about this call record here:					
Account Number:		User 10:			
CSN:		User 11:			
User 3:		User 12:			
User 4:		User 13:			
User 5:		User 14:			
User 6:		User 15:			
User 7:					
User 8:					
User 9:					
			OK Cancel		

Please note that the Update Call Record dialog only allows you to insert or replace information about a call, and does not allow you to view previous information.

If a call recording is already in progress, because of a previously created recording schedule, or because you already started a recording, the On-Demand Client application will update the call to the new information while simultaneously informing you that a call recording is already in progress.

For example: The administrator sets up a schedule which records all calls on device 1321 with a single day's retention and another schedule for agent initiated recordings which changes the retention to indefinite. When the agent selects **"By Agent Number (2123)"** the information about that call is updated

to reflect that device 1321 was recording agent 2123, the retention date is updated, and the agent is informed that a recording was already in progress and the information updated.

Checking the Status

While the On-Demand Client application is running, it maintains a list of the actions it has performed, and the current state of the client. The client keeps track of:

- Audio Recordings
- Desktop Recordings
- Connection Status
- Errors



To check the state of the Client, you can select the "**Status...**" menu item, or observe the balloon tips that will pop up after any action.

Changing Settings

The On-Demand Client application has several user configurable settings, depending on how the Administrator has set up the system. To access these settings, right click on the system tray icon and click the "**Settings**..." menu option.

	Servers System About
Gene	ral
Devic	e ID:
Devic	e Aliases:
Usem	ame:
Usem	ame: as
Usem ithom Compu	ame: as uter Name:
Usem ithom Compu	ame: as uter Name: MAS-LAPTOP
Usem ithom Compu JTHO	ame: as uter Name: MAS-LAPTOP

Device Settings

You can permanently set or change the Device ID / Extension / Voice port by entering the physical device's identifier in the appropriate box.

If you change the Device ID / Extension / Voice port, a dialog box will appear warning you that they will need to restore the Device ID to its previous value to stop recordings on that Device ID.

The Device ID/Extension/Voice port can also be set each time the On-Demand Client is launched by selecting the **Prompt for the Device ID** checkbox on the agent's On-Demand permissions in the Web Portal.

The Device Aliases field displays any agent identifier such as phone login that is currently used for recording.

The Computer Name and the Username of the user currently logged into the computer are also displayed to help in diagnosing login problems.

The settings listed in the Device Settings tab can be made user-configurable or read-only through the **Permissions** \rightarrow **Agent** menu in the Admin Portal.

Servers Settings

To communicate properly the server **Host** setting must be set to the IP address or hostname of the CallCopy Server. The **Port** is provided for diagnostic purposes only and cannot be changed through this interface. Since the port must be the same on both the client and the server, it is only possible to change the port through the configuration file.

Device Servers System A	bout
Setup On-Demand Serve	rs:
Host	Port
127.0.0.0	2007 Edit
	Delete
	Move Up
	Move Down
	Nove Bown
	Set as
	Primary

Multiple On-Demand Servers can be installed in the network for redundancy. Click **New** to add other servers for the client to access if another one is not available. When the server host is changed, the Client will break any existing connection and try to reconnect using the updated address.

The client will attempt to connect to the servers in the order in which they appear in the panel. To change this order, click the server IP address and use the **Move Up/Move Down** buttons. To designate one server as the main server to use, click the server IP address and click **Set as Primary**.

System Settings

To better assist you when you are having technical problems, the On-Demand Client application contains a logging system that stores up to a week's worth of log entries. These log files can be sent to CallCopy support to help resolve login issues, crashes, and other unexplained problems.

The level of detail the logs provide can be determined by the "Logging Level", with ERRORS providing the least amount of detail and DEBUG providing the greatest. You can also turn OFF logging altogether. Unless instructed to do so, you should leave the Logging Level at WARNING, which will only record errors and potential problems.

Closing the Application

Exiting the application requires that the user right-click on the On-Demand Client system tray icon and select "Exit".

A confirmation box will appear warning the user that quitting the application will not cancel any current audio recordings, but will cancel desktop recordings.

CallCopy On-Demand Client				
?	are you sure you wish to exit the CallCopy On-Demand Client? f you have any audio recordings in progress, they will continue until you stop them. Desktop recordings will stop immediately.			
	Yes No			

Choose the appropriate action.

Troubleshooting

Obtaining Client Logs

If problems occur with this application, it may be necessary to contact CallCopy Support for further assistance. Before contacting Support, you should have access to the cc: On-Demand Client log files for use in troubleshooting. The log files are located in the following directory on the workstation:

- %APPDATA%\CallCopy\OnDemand\
- \Users\User\AppData\Roaming\CallCopy\OnDemand for Windows 7

The client log files are listed inside, with one log file listed for each date the cc: On-Demand client was running. The log files follow an '*yyyy-mm-dd.log*' format (e.g. 2010-09-01.log). Copy these log files so they may be forwarded on to CallCopy Support for analysis.

Core Settings

On-Demand uses the API server to communicate with the Discover Core:

- Confirm in the logs that events are being received by each component.
- Check that the Core's Enable Event Interface setting is 'Yes'.
- Check that the Core's API Commands to Script setting is 'Yes'. This setting is recommended for most integrations. (See scripts comment.)

Scripts

Scripts for On-Demand customer typically must handle API events. Different CallCopy scripts use different methods for handling API events. Review the script to confirm that it does have an API handling method and that the method handles call event data.

About CallCopy

CallCopy, a leading provider of innovative call recording and contact center solutions, is dedicated to ensuring the highest standards of customer and employee satisfaction. The award-winning, enterprise-proven cc: Discover suite delivers advanced call recording, screen capture, quality management, speech analytics, performance management, customer survey and workforce management capabilities to organizations of all sizes and industries across the globe.

CallCopy empowers these organizations to gather business intelligence, which is leveraged to maximize operational performance, reduce liability, achieve regulatory compliance and increase customer satisfaction.

For more information, visit <u>www.callcopy.com</u>.